WILLOWS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regular Meeting – October 13, 2022 Regular Session 7:00 p.m. Willows City Council Chambers 201 N. Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988

MINUTES

1. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER

- 1.1 Roll Call President Geiger called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Members present were: Jeromy Geiger, Alex Parisio, Lourdes Ruiz, and Gina Taylor.
- 1.2 Welcome to Visitors
- 1.3 Flag Salute was led by Stacy Lanzi.

2. AGENDA/MINUTES

2.1 Approve the Agenda for October 13, 2022. President Geiger requested Item 6A-1 be moved to Item #3.1 following Public Comments.

Jeromy Geiger moved, seconded by Alex Parisio to approve the Agenda for October 13, 2022 as amended.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

2.2 Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 and the Special Meeting of September 20, 2022

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 and the Special Meeting of September 20, 2022.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

3. **PUBLIC COMMENTS** - None

3.1 (Information) Fentanyl Presentation and MOU for use of Narcan in Schools – Dr. Jared Garrison. Dr. Garrison presented information on fentanyl and its use in our community and schools. He discussed the use of Narcan by school staff and shared he trained members of the WHS staff on its use.

4. REPORTS

4.1 Employee Associations (WUTA & CSEA)

WUTA - No report

CSEA – President Kathleen Morrison reported:

- Happy with the agreement regarding the new job descriptions.
- Both CSEA and District Initial Proposals are on the agenda.
- Introduced the new CSEA Labor Representative, Crystal Ferrer.
- 4.2 Associated Student Body President No report
- 4.3 Principals

MES - Miguel Barriga reported:

- Front office meets every Friday at 3:00 p.m. to discuss things that went well, areas of improvement, and communication.
- Handed out the second Mallard of the Month awards on October 13, 2022.
- In the past month, have connected/met/visited classrooms at least 50 times in order to know what is going on in classrooms and to help meet the professional needs of teachers.
- Two students will be representing MES at the Spelling Bee on October 19, 2022.
- Intervention team has created a "Learning Center" working with students in math and English Language Arts. They are organized, professional, and use a research based approach. They have also been willing to provide staff with useful ides in teaching reading at the September 19th Professional Development Day.
- First "Coffee with the Principal" will be October 14, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

- Received a donation from Walmart consisting of supplies for students.
- In the past, MES has had a successful program with Eskaton Kennedy Manor. Will be starting that back up with Mrs. Trujillo's 3rd grade class. Once a month, students participate in having a pizza lunch and doing guided crafts with the residents.
- Fall Festival will be October 27, 2022 from 4:00 p.m. 6:30 p.m.
- Held a math-a-thon, with the reward for the highest learners in each class getting to silly string the principal. It was a fun event.
- District sent a team to the School Culture by Design Summit in Sacramento. Topics included habits that
 build culture, community building, and analysis of where we are. Created an action plan and will be
 building by design in the areas of communication, onboarding staff, gatherings, celebrations, and
 concerns. Good news is that the values and beliefs at MES already match successful school cultures.
- The addition of Stacy Lanzi has already proven to be a positive agent in improving school culture. To quote her "It's like being the host of a huge party every single day!"
- Enrollment is 608:
 - $\begin{array}{ccc} \circ & TK-27 \\ \circ & K-85 \end{array}$
 - \circ 1st 86
 - \circ 2nd -89
 - \circ 3rd 129
 - \circ 4th -95
 - o 5th 97

WIS - Chris Harris reported:

- District sent a team to the School Culture Summit. Will be focused on communication, onboarding, gatherings, and celebrations/concerns. Will be looking at current school culture and asking if we are thriving, striving, or surviving. What does a thriving school culture look like, sound like, feel like? Collaboration with other districts was beneficial.
- Enrollment is 300:
 - $\circ \quad 6^{th}-103$
 - $\circ 7^{th}-103$
 - \circ 8th 94
- Volleyball and soccer has wrapped up. Girls basketball will now begin.
- Thank you to maintenance and custodial staff for the work during October break. Working on the fencing project.
- Mr. Shively held two days of River Jim events during the October break.
- WIS PTO and 8th grade parent committees have been meeting.
- PTO is hosting a dance and Glow Party on October 14, 2022.
- 8th grade is looking at Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk for their trip.
- First quarter ends on October 14, 2022. Will be recognizing student achievement and attendance, but will also evaluate which students will benefit from some sort of intervention.
- First site council meeting will be held on October 20, 2022.
- Two students from each grade level will compete in the Glenn County Spelling Bee on October 19, 2022.
- Continue to work on UDL for staff development.
- Teacher in-service day on September 19th was very much appreciated. Teachers were inspired.
- Staff at WIS are involved in a number of different activities and committees and just want to take the opportunity to acknowledge their great work and dedication to our districts and students.

WHS - Julie Carriere reported:

- Thank you to the office and counseling staff for all they do.
- Held an assembly "The Power of Positive Leadership" that had a great message of developing a championship mindset and was received well by all.
- Student of the Week has continued. A service club is doing a Student of the Month and will be providing a \$50 gift card. Any student who is Student of the Week will be put into the drawing for the Student of the Month.
- District sent a team to the School Culture Summit in Sacramento. They are already planning a number of events at the high school for the students and staff.

- Counseling staff are working on seminars and workshops helping seniors in completing scholarship and college applications and FAFSA forms. The first FAFSA night is October 24, 2022, and there are two college application workshops on October 17-18, 2022.
- Continue to work with the PRISM team and other educational partners in the community to identify and support at-risk students. Dr. Garrison did a presentation and training at WHS on Narcan. Earlier today, had a Wellness event and a talk at lunch.
- Friday is the end of the quarter. Grades will be going out next week.
- High School Back to School night was well attended.
- Fall Sports rally was a success and a very positive way to connect to the community.
- First School Site Council meeting was held on October 10, 2022, and a number of parents attended.
- Trunk or Treat will be held on October 31, 2022 from 3:00 p.m. 5:00 p.m. in the football parking lot. ASB will be handing out candy. Invitations will go out to students at WIS and MES.
- Homecoming will be on October 28, 2022 against Biggs. Homecoming semi-formal dance will be held on October 29, 2022 in Memorial Hall. Homecoming parade is set to go.
- Senior trip has been approved, and students will be going to Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk.
- Bob Rawles, Athletic Director reported:
 - o 5 WHS teams are in 3 different leagues.
 - BVL Swimming had 4 individuals qualify for league championships and division championships.
 - o MVL:
 - Football: Varsity Football record is currently 2-4. All players and coaches attended a special presentation of the "The Power of Positive Leadership" seminar. There was an issue with some local fans at the last home football game. Will be implementing a sportsmanship public service announcement that will be on our website and all links. It will be read prior to all home football games, along with the code of ethics.
 - Cross Country: Championships will be held on November 2, 2022 in Colusa. Have not been able to host a home meet, but will be holding a home meet next year at Carriere Family Farms.
 - Volleyball: Currently in 2nd place, and will be in the playoffs.
 - SVL Tennis team are the SVL Champions and were undefeated. Individual championships will be held October 14-15, 2022.
 - Winter sports coaches meeting will be held on Monday, October 17, 2022 at 3:30 p.m.

WCHS – Emmett Koerperich reported:

- Enrollment is 25 students.
- Continuing to explore ways to engage students in their credit recovery.
- Good feeling about WCHS this year. Kids are friendly and respectful. They show up to school on time, and if they are late, they stay late.
- Mrs. Beck calls home on every absence, and Mr. Bazan follows up with a home visit.
- Mrs. McNeil is trying to arrange weekly group therapy counseling sessions with the county PRISM team.
- Working on scheduling some educational field trips.
- Some WCHS students will be providing community service while participating in the MES Fall Festival.
- The Career Tech will be facilitating career units of study including a food handler's certification.

4.4 Director of Business Services – Debbie Costello reported:

- Transition from QSS to Escape occurred in the midst of the ransomware craziness, so have been working on implementation components that had been bypassed in the early transition.
- There have been issues with QSS which has delayed completion of the unaudited actuals, so they will be presented at the November board meeting.
- Working on implementing Frontline districtwide as an absence management system. It has been used for certificated absences and substitute assignments in the past.
- Hoping to have leave balances on October paychecks.
- Will be implementing Resource Manager in our libraries which will allow us to manage the chromebooks.
- Transitioning to a new food service management platform called Titan. Hoping to have it up and running by the end of November.
- Will be receiving the Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant will provide \$2.4 million to be used over the next 5 years primarily for learning support.

- Received the Art, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Grant in the amount of \$850,000.
- MOU with GCOE for additional SEL funding. \$50,000 this year and another \$50,000 next year.
- First Interim will be presented at the December board meeting.
- With the implementation of the second chance breakfast, WUSD is now serving 50% or more of our students breakfast every day.
- WHS kitchen modernizations will begin. With the approval of the bid for the MES kitchen modernization, it will start as well.

4.5 Director of Instructional Support Services – Michelle O'Dell reported:

- SPARK/ASAP
 - o Fully staffed now with TK-5th grade classes and one 6th-8th grade class.
 - In the process of growing the program and adding a second kindergarten class or a second 3rd grade class.
 - o Thank you to Mr. Barriga to finding space and supporting the program.
 - o Identifying fun, new enrichment opportunities.
 - NBA Math Hoops training curriculum with math, SEL and physical education components.
 - Purchased 2 vertical hydroponic farms, once for MES and one for WIS science curriculum K-8.
- Independent Study (ISP)
 - o Long term ISP enrollment: MES-2, WIS-1, WHS-12
- September 19th Districtwide Professional Development Day
 - Breakout sessions focused on SEL, foster youth and homeless populations, and NWEA Map Growth testing.
 - o Began vertical articulation discussions in grades 5-12.
- Engagement Team
 - The first Parent Academy was held on September 28, 2022 and focused on safety protocols. 14 parents attended and were engaged by asking questions.
 - Wellness Walk will be held on October 20, 2022 from 3:00-4:30. Engagement Team has been working hard and has multiple organizations and community members participating.
 - O Go to School with Your Student Day at MES will be held October 24-26. 42 parents have already pre-registered. Will be partnering with food service to cater muffins and provide coffee for the parents to eat with their students in the morning. Thank you to Mr. Barriga and staff for allowing the event to be held.
 - October 24 TK-1 grade parents
 - October 25 2-3 grade parents
 - October 26 4-5 grade parents

4.6 Director of Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment – Scott Booth reported:

- Completed the Census Day on October 5, 2022. Fall 1 does not close until December 16, 2022. Distributed District/School Information (2022/23).
- Completing the first Site Council Meetings at each site.
- Following the DELAC/ELAC training on August 31, 2022, all sites have completed their first ELAC meetings and are scheduled to have the first DELAC meeting on October 26, 2022.
- MES is moving through the pilot of the TWIG science curriculum. They are preparing for the next pilot with McGraw Hill and are scheduled for training on October 20, 2022.
- The first Hatching Results training was held on September 8, 2022 for counselors and site administrators. It focused on the role of school counseling in alignment with the American School Counselor Association's model and professional standards. Next training will be held on November 3, 2022.
- Thank you to Michelle O'Dell for planning and executing the Professional Development Day on September 19, 2022. The afternoon provided the kick-off to our ongoing articulation efforts, with introductory articulation from grade 5-12 identifying the "ins" and "outs". These efforts will continue in order to align the district's curriculum and programs.
- CAASPP testing data is available as a preview, with public release expected in December. ELPAC
 Summative data will also be released in December. Detailed data reports were shared with site
 administrators and then with the CIA committee. Spent time looking through the data and identified some
 areas of focus such as student engagement, writing, and support of EL students. Will continue working
 with this analysis at every opportunity to include management team meetings, site PLCs, staff meetings,
 and CIA committee meetings.

• Distributed and reviewed the snapshot of the 2021/22 CAASPP results which compared data to 2019 and 2021 as well as to the State and Glenn County. Shared planned strategies for academic improvement relating to the LCAP goals.

4.7 Superintendent – Emmett Koerperich reported:

- District enrollment is 1403.
- In effort to establish a high performing district culture with quality and learning, the management team is working on identifying essential standards, developing curriculum maps and pacing guides, so WUSD has a K-12 guaranteed and viable curriculum. The goal is to create standardized electronic versions of what all students need to know at every grade level and subject. This will allow faculty to be more strategic and identify areas of needed improvement.
- Each site is working to improve the culture on their respective campuses. Professional development like the "School Culture Summit", "The Power of Positive Leadership", spirit days, assemblies, dances and other activities are all efforts to accomplish this goal.
- Another district goal is to have all students have access to grade level courses. If all work is at grade level and not every student is not ready, they will need support. This is when the MTSS (Multi-tiered systems of support) training will have an impact. It's designed to intervene early so students catch up to their peers. District has partnered with the county to provide MTSS training for all certificated staff and classified staff involved in student interventions. The focus of the online training is to identify strategies to support academics, behavior, and attendance. Training for the administrators and site leadership teams begins this semester and the remainder of the staff start in the spring. There is a grant funded stipend for those who complete the training.
- Another important part of the district culture is the classified staff. Superintendent and principals have been meeting with each of the department leads and meeting with the teams. The goal of these meetings is to develop leadership skills and improve communications. There has been progress with some teams with more work to be done with others. The process of improvement takes time.
- Distributed and reviewed the updated project and construction schedules.

4.8 Board of Education Members

Lourdes Ruiz reported:

- Attended some sports events.
- Attended a WIS soccer game. Glad to see soccer at WIS to prepare students for WHS.
- Glad to have Julie Carriere as the only high school representative on the GCOE CTE grant committee.

Alex Parisio reported:

- Exciting time with the projects that will be completed with the school modernization funds.
- October is fire prevention month and will be at MES and then will be participating in the WHS career day.
- The Farm Bureau statewide publication "Ag Alert" had a story on the Mighty Honker Goat Program.

Gina Taylor reported:

- Thank you to all administrators on the quality of the reports.
- Attended some sports events and the Fall Sports Rally downtown.
- Thank you to Stacy Lanzi on her role as a 4-H Key Leader. Having relationships outside of the school setting is important.

Jeromy Geiger reported:

 Been on the board for many years, and it's very exciting to be able to see the modernization of our facilities with state funds.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. GENERAL

- 1. Accept donation from John & Babs Berens in the amount of \$50.00 for WHS Wrestling in memory of Jeff Fleming.
- 2. Accept donation from Willows Alumni Association in the amount of \$2,000.00 for each teacher to receive \$100 for school related expenditures.
- 3. Approve the surplus of 12 Hessaire Portable Coolers.
- 4. Approve the WUSD Obsolete Technology Equipment list.

B. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

- 1. Approve Interdistrict Request for Students #22-23-31 through #22-23-46 to attend school in the Willows Unified School District for the 2022/23 school year.
- 2. Approve Interdistrict Request for Students #22-23-26 through #22-23-28 to attend school in another district for the 2022/23 school year.
- 3. Approve the Overnight Field Trip Request for Friday Night Live (FNL) to attend the FNL Youth Summit in Anaheim, CA, November 5-7, 2022.

C. HUMAN RESOURCES

- 1. Accept resignation of Trudy Pimblett, Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard at MES, effective 9/2/22.
- 2. Accept retirement of Sallie Kormos, Custodian/Sub Bus Driver, effective 12/8/22.
- 3. Approve employment of Trudy Pimblett, Cafeteria Helper I, effective 9/6/22.
- 4. Approve employment of Matthew Bateman, After School Program Activity Assistant, effective 9/13/22.
- 5. Approve employment of Jessica Dunlap, Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard at WIS, effective 9/21/22.
- 6. Approve employment of Danielle Zuppan, Instructional Aide I at MES, effective 9/21/22.
- 7. Approve employment of Gloria Barragan, Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard at MES, effective 9/22/22.
- 8. Approve employment of Amanda Gerney, Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard at WIS, effective 10/10/22.
- 9. Approve employment of Edith Rivera, Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard at MES, effective 10/10/22.
- 10. Approve employment of Tami Lucero, After School Program Activity Assistant, effective 10/10/22.
- 11. Approve employment of Sopheap Kruoch, After School Program Activity Assistant, effective 10/11/22.
- 12. Approve employment of Jose Lopez, Instructional Aide I at WIS, effective 10/17/22.
- 13. Approve Classified Substitute List.
- 14. Approve the extra duty assignments:

Detention at WHS Katie Jones, Alma Piña, Nikeedra Laufer

Detention ("Think Time") at MES Morgan Boer, Annie Mascadri, Leanna Pebley, Grace Trujillo

13. Approve the following 2022/23 WHS Fall Coach:

Volleyball Volunteer Coach Corey Richards

14. Approve the following 2022/23 WHS Winter Coaches:

Varsity Boys Basketball – Head Coach

JV Boys Basketball – Head Coach

Rosendo Zepeda

Varsity Girls Basketball – Head Coach TBD

JV Girls Basketball – Head Coach
Varsity Wrestling – Head Coach
Wrestling Volunteer Coach
Varsity Boys Soccer – Head Coach
Varsity Girls Soccer – Head Coach
Varsity Girls Soccer Volunteer Coach

Amanda Hutson
Dominic Mercado
Megan Courtney
Jose Barajas
Kristi Hill
Martin Castillo

D. BUSINESS SERVICES

- 1. Approve budget revision summary.
- 2. Approve warrants from 8/31/22 through 10/5/22.

Gina Taylor requested Item #5A-2 be pulled for discussion.

Jeromy Geiger moved, seconded by Alex Parisio to approve the Consent Calendar excluding Item #5A-2.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

Item #5A-2 – A correction was made to add "WIS" in the following consent item:

Accept donation from Willows Alumni Association in the amount of \$2,000.00 for each **WIS** teacher to receive \$100 for school related expenditures.

Jeromy Geiger moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve Item 5A-2 as amended.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

6. DISCUSSION/ACTION CALENDAR

A. GENERAL

- (Information) Fentanyl Presentation and MOU for use of Narcan in Schools Dr. Jared Garrison Moved to Item 3.1.
- 2. **(Information)** Williams Uniform Complaints Quarterly Report. (There were not any complaints.) Information only no action taken.

B. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

1. (**Discussion/Possible Action**) Approve the 2022/23 WUSD Mission, Vision, and Goals. After some discussion - no changes need to be made.

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Jeromy Geiger to approve the 2022/23 WUSD Mission, Vision, and Goals.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

2. **(Action)** Approve expulsion of Student #2022-23-01 through the spring semester of the 2022/23 school year. Alex Parisio moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve expulsion of Student #2022-23-01 through the spring semester of the 2022/23 school year.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

3. **(Action)** Approve expulsion of Student #2022-23-02 through the spring semester of the 2022/23 school year. Alex Parisio moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve expulsion of Student #2022-23-02 through the spring semester of the 2022/23 school year.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

C. HUMAN RESOURCES

1. **Public Hearing:** In accordance with Government Code §3547, a Public Hearing will be held at this time to allow for public input regarding the Initial Proposal from the California School Employees Association #119 (CSEA) to the Willows Unified School District (WUSD) for the 2022/23 school year.

President Geiger opened the Public Hearing at 8:48 p.m.

No comments

President Geiger closed the Public Hearing at 8:49 p.m.

2. **Public Hearing:** In accord with Government Code §3547, a Public Hearing will be held at this time to allow for public input regarding the Initial Proposal (see attached) from the Willows Unified School District (WUSD) to the California School Employees Association #119 (CSEA) for the 2022/2023 school year.

President Geiger opened the Public Hearing at 8:49 p.m.

No comments

President Geiger closed the Public Hearing at 8:50 p.m.

3. **(Action)** Approve the Initial Proposal from the Willows Unified School District to the California School Employees Association #119 (CSEA) for the 2022/2023 school year.

Alex Parisio moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve the Initial Proposal from the Willows Unified School District to the California School Employees Association #119 (CSEA) for the 2022/2023 school year.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

4. **(Discussion/Possible Action)** Substitute Teacher Pay Rates. Emmett Koerperich shared that WUSD currently pays \$150/day for a substitute teacher. Other districts in the county pay up to \$175/day. It's difficult to find

An Equal Opportunity Employer

substitutes, so increasing the substitute teacher pay rate to \$200/day (\$225 for long term) might entice more people to become substitute teachers and to take jobs in Willows.

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to approve the increase in the substitute teacher pay rate from \$150/day to \$200/day and from \$175/day to \$225/day for long-term substitutes.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

5. (Action) Approve Job Description for Campus Supervisor.

Gina Taylor moved, seconded by Jeromy Geiger to approve the job description for the Campus Supervisor.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

6. (Action) Approve Job Description for Bus Driver/Custodian.

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Alex Parisio to approve the job description for the Bus Driver/Custodian.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

D. BUSINESS SERVICES

1. **(Action)** Accept base bid and Alternate #2 for the MES Kitchen Modernization and authorize the Superintendent to enter into a contract with the construction company. WUSD received two bids, with BCM Construction Company Inc. being the apparent low bidder.

Jeromy Geiger moved, seconded by Gina Taylor to accept the bid from BCM Construction Company Inc. in the amount of \$1,722,000.00 and \$33,950.00 for Alternate #2 (Roller Window Shades) for the MES Kitchen Modernization, and authorize the Superintendent to enter into a contract with them.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

 (Action) Approve Agreement with Rainforth Grau Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services: Additional Services #2 – Murdock Elementary School – Kitchen Modernization. This will be for improvements to the two toilet rooms at front of the multipurpose room.

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Alex Parisio to approve the agreement with Rainforth Grau Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services: Additional Services #2 – Murdock Elementary School – Kitchen Modernization.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

3. **(Action)** Approve the Agreement with Rainforth Grau Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services: Willows Intermediate School – Front Office Modernization.

Lourdes Ruiz moved, seconded by Jeromy Geiger to approve the agreement with Rainforth Grau Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services: Willows Intermediate School – Front Office Modernization.

AYES: Geiger, Parisio, Ruiz, and Taylor

NOES: None

MOTION PASSED: 4-0

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS

- 7.1 The MES Fall Festival will be held on Thursday, October 27, 2022 from 4:00 p.m. 6:30 p.m.
- 7.2 The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on November 3, 2022, at 7:00 p.m.

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ITEMS - None

At 9:01 p.m., the Board took a short recess after the Regular Meeting before going into Closed Session. President Geiger will report out into Open Session upon the conclusion of Closed Session.

9. CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session began at 9:10 p.m.

- 9.1 Pursuant to Government Code §54957(b): Complaint Against Employee(s).
- 9.2 Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiator Agency Negotiator: Emmett Koerperich. Employee Organizations: WUTA, CSEA, Management, and Confidential.

10. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

- 10.1 Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session
- At 10:25 p.m., the meeting reconvened to Open Session. President Geiger reported out:
- 9.1: The Board counseled the Superintendent.
- 9.2: Update given to the Board. Direction given to the Superintendent.

11. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 10:26 p.m.

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. By request alternative agenda document formats are available to persons with disabilities. To arrange an alternative agenda document format or to arrange aid or services to modify or accommodate persons with a disability to participate in a public meeting, please provide a written request to:

The Willows Unified School District Office at least three (3) working days prior to any public meeting.